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VISION STATEMENT

To be a customer oriented Company having wide and diversified customer base with a
team of professionals working together to add value to all the stakeholders and

contributing to society to help build a strong and progressive Pakistan.

MISSION STATEMENT

The mission of AN Textile Mills Limited is, recognition of its project as the most modern
units, and to produce fine quality of product with the understanding of customer
behavior. Build the Company on sound financial footings, increase earnings for
handsome distribution of dividend to its shareholders, and to earn foreign exchange for

the country.
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 39™ Annual General Meeting of the members of AN Textile
Mills Limited (“the Company™) will be held on Wednesday, October 28, 2020 at 10:00
A_M. at its registered office situated at 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad to transact
the following business:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1. To confirm the minutes of last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2019.

2. To receive, consider and adopt the audited financial statements of the Company for the year
ended June 30, 2020 together with the Chairperson’s review, Directors’ and Auditors’ reports
thereon.

3. To appoint the auditors of the Company for the next financial year and to fix their
remuneration. The retiring auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad and Company, Chartered Accountants,

being eligible, have offered themselves for re-appointment.

4, To transact any other business that may be brought forward with the permission of the Chair.

By order of the Board

Finbgm”

Dated: October 05, 2020 Tahir Shahzad
Faisalabad (Company Secretary)
NOTES:

I. The share transfer books of the Company shall remain closed from October 21, 2020 to
October 28, 2020 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order at Registered Office of the
Company or our Share Registrar, M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K,
Commercial, Model Town. Lahore by the close of business on October 20, 2020 will be
considered in time.

2. A member entitled to attend and vote at this general meeting is entitled to appoint another
member as proxy. Proxies must be received in order to effective at the registered office of the
Company not less than 48 hours before the time for the meeting.

3. Any individual Beneficial Owner of CDC, entitled to attend and vote at this meeting, must
bring his / her original CNIC or Passport to prove his / her identity and in case of Proxy must
enclose an attested copy of his / her CNIC or Passport. Representatives of corporate members
should bring the usual documents required for such purpose.
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.4. Shareholders are requested to notify the change in their addresses if any, immediately.
Moreover, the members who have not yet submitted their Computerized National Identity
Cards to the Company are requested to send at their earliest.

2. Under the provisions of section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, it 1s mandatory for a listed
Company to pay cash dividend to its shareholders only through electronic mode directly into bank
account designated by the entitled shareholders. In order to receive dividends directly into their
bank accounts, sharcholders are requested to fill in dividend mandate form available on Companies
website: www.antextile.com.pk and send it duly signed along with a copy of CNIC to the Share
Registrar of the Company M/s Corplink (Private) Limited, Wings Arcade, 1-K, Commercial,
Model Town, Lahore during working hours in case of physical shares. In case shares are held
in CDC then dividend mandate form must be submitted directly to shareholders’ broker
participant/CDC account services.

In case of non-submission of an IBAN, the Company will withhold the payment of dividends under
Companies (Distribution of Dividends) Regulations, 2017.

6. Sharcholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some
unclaimed/uncollected! unpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their
dividends/shares are advised to contact our Shares Registrars to collect enquire about their
unclaimed dividend or shares, if any. In compliance with section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017,
after having completed the stipulated procedure, of three years or more from the date due and
payable, shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government in case of unclaimed dividend and
in case of share, shall be delivered to the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

7. Government of Pakistan through Finance Act, 2019, has made certain amendments in withholding
tax provisions by substituting the definition of “Filers™ with “Active Taxpayer List”™ (ATL),
whereby the Company is required to collect tax on dividend under section 150 of the Income Tax
Ordinance, 20011 from the person not appearing in the ATL at the rates specified in the Ordinance
as increased by 100%. These tax rates are as under:

(a) For persons appearing in ATL 15% (b) For persons not appearing in ATL 30%

Sharcholders who are filers, are advised to make sure that their names are entered into latest
ATL provided on the website of Federal Board of Revenue (FBR) at the time of dividend
payment, otherwise they shall be treated as person not appearing in ATL and tax on their cash
dividends will deducted at the rate of 30% instead of 15%.

8. For shareholders holding their shares jointly as per the clarification issued by the FBR,
withholding tax will be determined separately as per status of their names appearing in the
ATL for principal shareholder as well as joint-holder(s) based on their shareholding
proportions. Therefore, all shareholders who hold shares jointly are required to provide
sharecholding proportions of principal shareholder and joint shareholder(s) in respect of shares
held by them to our Share Registrar.

i1l
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SECP through its notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014 has allowed the
circulation of audited financial statements along with the notice of Annual General Meeting
electronically to the shareholders of the Company through email. Therefore, sharcholders who
wish to receive the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send their e-mail addresses.
The consent form for electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company’s website.
The Company shall however, continue to provide hard copy of the audited financial statements
to its shareholders, on request free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.

In compliance with SECP notification No. 634(1)/2014 dated July 10, 2014, the audited financial
statements and reports of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019 are being placed on the
Company’s website: www.antextile.com.pk for information and review of the sharcholders.

Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies Act, 2017 the shareholders residing in a city and
holding at least 10% of the total paid up share capital may demand the Company to provide the
facility of video-link for participating in the AGM. The demand for video-link facility shall be
received by the Share Registrar at the address given here in above at least seven days prior to the
date of the meeting on the Standard Form available on the Company’s website:
www._antextile.com.pk

Il
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CHAIRPERSON'S REVIEW
For the year ended June 30, 2020

The Board of Directors of AN Textile Mills Limited (*the Company”) is performing its duties in
accordance with law and in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as required
under the Code of Corporate Governance, an annual evaluation of the Board of Directors of the
Company 1s carried out. The purpose of this evaluation is to ensure that the Board's overall
performance and effectiveness is measured and benchmarked against expectations in the context
of objectives set for the Company.

For the financial year ended June 30, 2020, the Board’s overall performance and effectiveness
has been assessed as satisfactory. This is based on an evaluation of integral components,
including vision, mission and values; engagement in strategic planning; formulation of policies;
monitoring the organization’s business activities; monitor financial resource management;
effective fiscal oversight; equitable treatment of all employees and efficiency in carrying out the
Board’s business.

AN Textile Mills Limited complies with all the requirements set out in the Law with respect to
the composition, procedures and meetings of the Board of Directors and its committees.
Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the
board in sufficient time prior to the board and its committees’ meetings. The Board has exercised
all 1ts powers in accordance with relevant laws and regulation and the non-executive and
independent directors are equally involved in important decisions of the Board.

Na%’/‘q M |
Mrs. Nazma Amer
Chairperson

i1l
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT TO THE SHARE HOLDERS

The Directors of the Company are pleased to present their 39" Annual Report along with audited
Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended June 30, 2020 along with
Auditors' Report thereon and other required information prescribed under the Code of Corporate
Governance, The comparative financial results of the Company are reproduced hereunder:

FINANCIAL RESULTS:

2020

2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 1,315,177 1,885,310
COST OF SALES (1,305,398) (1,747,080)
GROSS PROFIT 9,779 138.230
DISTRIBUTION COST (2,036) (2,111}
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (38,949) (42,969)
OTHER EXPENSES (1,161) (3.239)
OTHER INCOME 22,361 18,330
FINANCE COST (62,437) (46,714)
(LOSS)/ PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (72.443) 61,527
TAXATION (7.884) (42.507)
(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (80,327) 19,020
(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) (8.32) 1.97

REVIEW OF OPERATING RESULTS

During the year under review, sales was Rupees 1.315.177 million as compared to last year’s
sales amounting to Rupees 1.885.310 million. The cost of sales was Rupees 1,305.398 million as
compared to Rupees 1,747.080 million in the preceding year. The company earned gross profit
of Rupees 9.779 million as compared to previous year’s gross profit of Rupees 138.230 million.
Moreover, the company faced loss atter taxation of Rupees 80.327 million as compared to profit
after taxation of Rupees 19.020 million in the last year.

The current financial year has not been very good for textile industry. After rescinding of SRO
1125 and imposition of sales tax and CNIC condition the industrial sector of Pakistan has badly
afected especially local yarn market. Moreover, production cost of the company has been
increased due to continuous increase in minimum wages by the Government. Finance cost of
the company has also been increased from Rupees 46.714 million to Rupees 62.437 million
due to increase in Kibor rates. Furthermore, due to Covid-19 pandemic the Government
imposed lockdown in the country and the operations of the mills remained closed from

24-03-2020 to 31-05-2020.
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FUTURE OUTLOOK

The cotton crop in Pakistan continues to decline year by year due to poor seed germination and
inclement weather. The failure of cotton crop in this season will be a huge challenge for the
industry. In current season cotton crop production is estimated almost 35% less as compared to
last season due to pest attack, heavy rains and change of climate conditions. These factors have
also badly affected the quality of cotton. Cotton prices are also extremely volatile, but the
management of your Company is closely watching the cotton outlook to procure best quality
cotton. The Government’s support in the form of availability of energy at reduced prices and
removal of import duty and sales tax on import of cotton will be imperative for industry.

The management of your Company anticipates that the financial year 2020-21 will be extremely
difficult. However, every possible effort will be made to increase efficiencies and curtail and
keep the expenses to a minimum level to sustain itself during this economic downturn.

LOSS PER SHARE

The loss per share for the year ended June 30, 2020 is Rupees 8.32 as compared to earnings per
share of Rupees 1.97 for the last year ended on June 30, 2019,

DIVIDEND

Since the company has incurred loss after taxation, therefore, the directors have not
recommended any dividend for the year.

OUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS

All outstanding payments are nominal and of routine nature.

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2020 is annexed. No trade in the shares of the company
was carried out during the year by its Directors, CEO, CFO and Company Secretary and their
spouses and minor children except for the sales / purchase of shares as mentioned on page no.

61.
RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm’s length. The prices are determined in
accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The Company has complied with best
practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of the Stock Exchanges of
Pakistan.
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AUDITORS

The auditors M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants retired and being eligible for
re-appointment, the Board of Directors has been suggested by the Audit Comimittee, the re-
appointment of M/s Riaz Ahmad & Company, Chartered Accountants, as auditors of your
company for the next financial year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The statement of compliance of best practices of Code of Corporate Governance 1s annexed.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAMEWORK:

In compliance to listing regulations of stock exchanges and as required under the Companies
Act, 2017, your Directors are pleased to state as under:

1. The financial statements prepared by the Management of your Company present fairly its
state of affairs, the results of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts of the Company have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of these
financial statements and accounting estimates, which are based on reasonable and prudent
Judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards and International Accounting Standards, as
applicable in Pakistan, have been followed in preparation of financial statements. The system

of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

5. The system of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and
monitored.

6. There is no doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern.

7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as
detailed in the listing regulations.

8. Key operating financial data of last six years in summarized form is annexed.

9. The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in these
financial statements.
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COMPOSITION OF BOARD AND ITS COMMITTEES

The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

Male:; Five
Female: Two

The composition of the Board is as follows:

1 Independent Directors
Mr. Abdul Rauf
Syed Khalid Ali

1i. Non-executive Directors

Khawaja Amer Khurshid

111. Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

v. Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Ms. Yusra Amer

Moreover, Khawaja Amer Khurshid has joined the Board in place of retiring director Mrs. Zarrin
Akhtar. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Al (Member)

HR and Remuneration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf (Member)
Mr. Anns Amer (Member)
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In compliance of Code of Corporate Governance Regulations, 2019 the following two new
committees were formed during the year.

Nomination Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

NO. OF BOARD AND OTHER COMMITTEES MEETINGS HELD:

Sr. | Name Board Of Audit HR & Nomination Risk
# Directors Committee Remuneration Committee | Management
Meeting Meeting Committee Committee
Meeting
1 | Mrs. Nazma 4/4 - - - -
Amer
2 | Mr. Aizad 4/4 - - - E
Amer
3 | Mr. Anns Amer 4/4 - 1/1 - 1/1
4 | Mrs. Zamin 4/4 - - - -
Akhtar
5 | Mr. Abdul Rauf 4 /4 1/1 1/1 1/1
6 | Ms. Yusra 4/4 4/4 - 1/1 -
Amer
7 | Syed Khalid Ali 4/4 4/4 1/1 1/1 1/1
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:

The Board places on record its appreciation for the cooperation, commitment and hard work
extended to the Company by the customers, suppliers, bankers and all the employees of the
Company.

On behalf

“the Board

FAISALABAD. 1zad Amer)
Dated: October 05, 2020 Chief Executive Officer
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Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2019

Name of Company: AN Textile Mills Limited
Year Ending: 30 June 2020

The company has compiled with the requirement of the Regulations in the following manner:;

I. The total number of Directors are seven as per the following:

a. Male: Five
b. Female: Two

2. The composition of the Board is as follows:

1. Independent Directors

Mr. Abdul Rauf
Syed Khalid Ali

1L. Non-executive Directors

Khawaja Amer Khurshid

1. Executive Directors

Mr. Aizad Amer
Mr. Anns Amer

iv. Female / Non-executive Directors

Mrs. Nazma Amer
Mrs. Yusra Amer

* The fraction of independent directors is not rounded up as one because the fraction of 0.33
was less than 0.50.

3. The Directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven
listed companies, including this company:

4. The Company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Company along with its supporting policies and
procedures;

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant
policies of the Company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
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particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company;

All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act
and these Regulations;

The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairperson and, in his absence, by a
director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the requirements
of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of
meeting of the Board;

The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in
accordance with the Act and these Regulations;

Mr. Aizad Amer has already attained Directors’ Training Program. Moreover another
director of the Company, Khawaja Amer Khurshid meets the exemption criteria of minimum
of 14 years of education and 15 years of experience on the Boards of listed companies, hence
exempt from Directors’ Training Program. Furthermore, the Board will arrange Directors’
Training program for its other directors in the next financial year.

The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head
of internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

Chief financial officer and chief executive officer duly endorsed the financial statements
before approval of the Board,

The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a)  Audit Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

b) HR and Remuneration Committee

Syed Khalid Ali (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf (Member)
Mr. Anns Amer (Member)

¢) Nomination Committee

Mr. Abdul Rauf (Chairman)
Ms. Yusra Amer (Member)
Syed Khalid Al (Member)
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d) Risk Management Committee

Mr. Anns Amer (Chairman)
Mr. Abdul Rauf (Member)
Syed Khalid Ali (Member)

The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and
advised to the committee for compliance;

The frequency of meetings (quarterly/ half yearly/ yearly) of the committees were as follows-
Committee Frequency
Audit committee Quarterly
HR and remuneration committee Yearly
Nomination committee Yearly
Risk Management committee Yearly

The Board has set up an effective internal audit function by appointing Head of Internal
Audit who is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant
with the policies and procedures of the company;

The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they and
all their partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC)
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan
and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit are not a close relative
(spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief executive officer, chief
financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of the company;

The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any other
regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC
guidelines in this regard;

We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 of the
Regulations have been complied with: and

All requirements other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27, 32, 33 and 36 have been complied
except for the non-compliance as given in Note 9 of the statement of compliance in which
related compliance will be made n next financial year.

Na%ﬂq st

NAZMA AMER
Chairperson
October 05, 2020.

212 |
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA
FOR LAST SIX YEARS

PARTICULARS

FINANCIAL POSITION

Paid up capital

Share premium

Fixed assets ar cost/ revalued amount
Accumulated depreciaton

Current assets

Current labilites

INCOME

Revenug
Oither income
Pre tax (loss) / profit

Taxation

STATTISTICS AND RATIOS

Pre tax (loss) / profit e sales %%

Pre tax (loss) / profit to capital %
Current ratio

Paid up vahie per share (Rs.)

(l.oss) / earnings afrer mx per share (Rs.)
Cash dividend %

Break up value per share (Rs.)

96,600
17,250
1,554,811
692,754
688,088
£36,786

1,315,177
22,361

(72.443)

(7.884)

14
(8.32)

THIY

916,600
17,250
1,481,947
633,241
690,441
773,391

1,885,310
18,330
61,527

{42,507)

326
6369
=055
R

1.97

4.0

ol.0s

018

6,600
17,250
1,431 460
613,088
418,114
550,464

1,598,473
16,250
3417

(11,020)

3.54
1:0.75
T
(BN

T7.36

2017 2016
46,600 O, 600
17,250 17,2500

1,420,745 1 483,900
583,766 002,354
34,281 579.574
476,717 737,370

1,102,932 1,466,267
39381 2416

(128.904) (141,178)

(46,216) 39,293
(11700 (0.63)
(133.54) (146.15)
141.71 1:0.79
Lk 1000
(1814 {1{.55)
7B S0

il

O, 6001

17,250

1,393,255

612,542
636,257

753,600

1,358,792
8,560

(110,479)
37,183

(8.12)
(114.29)
L0084
10,00
(7.59)

33.50
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2020 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 30 June

/<)1
RIAZ AHM
Chartered Actountants

Faisalabad
Date: October 05, 2020.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the members of AN Textile Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company),
which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2020, and the statement of
profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and
we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the
state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2020 and of the loss, other comprehensive
income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We
are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board
for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming
our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:

1

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matters were addressed in our
No. audit
1. |Inventory existence and

valuation

Inventories as at 30 June 2020
amounting to Rupees 497.512
million, break up of which is as
follows:

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools of Rupees
56.617 million

- Stock in trade of Rupees
440.895 million

Inventories are stated at lower of cost
and net realizable value.

We identified existence and valuation
of inventories as a key audit matter
due to its size, representing 30.01%
of the total assets of the Company as
at 30 June 2020, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information on
inventories, refer to the following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Inventories (Note 2.7 to
the financial statements).

Stores, spare parts and loose tools
(Note 17) and Stock in trade (Note
18) to the financial statements.

Our procedures over existence and valuation
of inventories included, but were not limited
to:

¢ To test the quantity of inventories at all
locations, we assessed the
corresponding inventory observation
instructions and participated in
inventory counts on sites. Based on
samples, we performed test counts
and compared the quantities counted
by us with the results of the counts of
the management.

 [For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the
weighted average cost appearing on
valuation sheets.

 On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-performed
the calculation of the inventory write
down, if any.

e In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual
cost components and traced them
back to the corresponding underlying
documents.

e We also made inquiries from
management, including those outside
of the finance function, and
considered the results of our testing
above to determine whether any
specific write downs were required.

ey |
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SR.
No.

Key audit matters

How the matters were addressed in our

audit

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to
the financial statements.

Revenue recognition

The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 1,315.177 million
for the year ended 30 June 2020.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note 2.18
to the financial
statements).

- Revenue (Note 25 to the
financial statements).

Our procedures included, but were not
limited to:

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the
year- end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and
other relevant underlying
documentation to assess if the related
revenue was recorded in the
appropriate accounting period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition
complies with the requirements of
IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'.

We compared the detail of a sample of
journal entries posted to revenue
accounts during the year, which met
certain specific risk-based criteria, with
the relevant underlying
documentation.

We also considered the
appropriateness of disclosures in the
financial statements.

27
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Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to
liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in
Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law

or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because

the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were
for the purpose of the Company’s business; and

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980),
was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established under
section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is

Mubashar M;hw

RIAZ AHMAD &COMPANY
Chartered Accountants
Faisalabad

Date: October 05, 2020.
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 25 1,315,177 1,885,310
COST OF SALES 26 (1,305,398) (1,747,080)
GROSS PROFIT 9,779 138,230
DISTRIBUTION COST 27 (2,036) (2,111)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 28 (38,949) (42,969)
OTHER EXPENSES 29 (1,161) (3,239)
OTHER INCOME 30 22,361 18,330
FINANCE COST 31 (62,437) (46,714)
(LOSS) / PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION (72,443) 61,527
TAXATION 32 (7,884) (42,507)
(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION (80,327) 19,020

(LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC
AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 33 (8.32) 1.97

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AIZAD AMER ANNS AMER
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

(LOSS) / PROFIT AFTER TAXATION
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:

Remeasurements of staff retirement gratuity
Related deferred income tax liability

Surplus on revaluation of property, plant and equipment
Related deferred income tax liability

Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss

Other comprehensive income for the year - net of deferred income tax

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS) / INCOME FOR THE YEAR

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

IZAD AMER ANNS AMER
Chief Executive Officer Director

il

2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
(80,327) 19,020
474 380
(137) (110)
337 270
42,644 19,869
(9,710) (5,762)
32,934 14,107
33,271 14,377
33,271 14,377
(47,056) 33,397

Chief Financial Officer
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STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

NOTE 2020 2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from / (used in) operations 34 165,758 (9,202)
Finance cost paid (65,543) (39,852)
Income tax paid (13,810) (21,646)
Staff retirement gratuity paid (4,030) (3,296)
Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments (25) (21)
Net increase in long term loans (20) -
NET CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN)
OPERATING ACTIVITIES 82,330 (74,017)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and eguipment (14,845) (19,149)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 297 138
Profit on investments received 490 69
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (14,058) (18,942)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Short term borrowings - net (80,090) 138,251
Dividend paid (2,745) (4)
NET CASH (USED IN) / FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES (82,835) 138,247
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (14,563) 45,288
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 50,052 4,764
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 24) 35,489 50,052

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AIZAD AMER ANNS AMER
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2020

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

AN Textile Mills Limited (the Company) is a public limited company Incorporated in Pakistan under the Companies Act, 1913 (Now
Companies Act, 2017) and its share are quoted on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. Its registered office and mills premises are situated at
35-Kilometers Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad, The prindpal activity of the Company Is manufacturing, sale and trading of yarm and cloth.

11 Impact of COVID-19 on these financial statements

The pandemic of COVID-19 which rapidly spread all across the world has not only endangered human lives but has also adversely impacted
the global economy. From 24 March 2020, the Government of the Punjab announced a emporary lockdown &5 a measure o reduce the
spread of the COVID-19. Complying with the lockdown, the Company tempararily suspended its operations from 24 March 2020 to 31 May
2020, The lockdown caused disruptions in stpply chain including supply of goods to the customers resulting in a dedine in sales, The
suspension of operations resulted in more than 30% decrease in revenue of the Company in comparison to last year which significantly
affected the results of the Company. Moreover certain stock in trade was valued at net realizable value as mentioned in Note 18.2 and Note
18.3 to thefinandal statements. However subsequent to the year ended 30 June 2020, due fo significant reduction in outhreak, demand for
the Company's goods is fast reverting back to normal levels, Apart from the above-mentioned effects, according to management's
assessment, there is no other significant accounting impadt of the effects of COVID-19 in thesa financial statements.

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting pelides applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below, These policies have been
consistently applled to all years presented, unless otherwise stated:

2.1  Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in acoordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan. The
accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

= International Finandal Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (1458) as notified under the
Companies Act, 2017; and

= Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Adt, 2017,
Where provisions of and diredives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives issued under
the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.
b) Accounting convention
These finandal statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except to the extent of the following:
Staff retirement gratuity
The Company uses the valuation performed by an independent actuary to determing the present value of its staff retirement gratulty.
Investment properties and certain items of property, plant and equipment

The Campany is using the revaluation model for certain property, plant and equipment. These items along with investment properties are
being valued by an independent valuer,

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting standards requires the use of certain critical accounting
estirmates. It also requires the management to exerdse its judgment in the procass of applying the Company's accounting policies. Estimates
and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience, induding expectations of future events that are believed to
be reasonable under the droumstances, The areas where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company’s financial
statements or whers judgments were exerdised in application of accounting polides are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimates for revalued amounts, of different classes of property, plant and equipment, are based on valuation performed by external
profiessienal valuer and recommendations of technical teams of the Company. The said recommendations also include estimates with respact
to residual values and depredable lives, Further, the Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impasrment on an annual basis,
Estimat=s with respect to residual values and useful lives and pattern of Aow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the
management of the Company. Any change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of
property, plant and equipment with a corresponding effect on the depreciation charge and impairment.

Inventories

Net realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to make sales.

il
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Income tax

In making the estimates for income Ex currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current income tax law
and the dedsions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected oredit losses assessment reguires a degree of estimation and judgement. It Is based on the lifetime expeded
oredit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years,

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue In relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key perfarmance abllgation of the Company is considered o be
the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains control of the promised goods
and therefore the benefits of unimpeded acoess.,

Staff retirement gratuity

Certaln actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disdosed in Note 8 to the financial statements for determination of present value of staff
refirement gratuity, Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the current and remeasurement gains and losses in those
YERrS,

d) Standard, interpretation and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year
and are relevant to the Company

Following, standard, interpretadon and amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s
acenunting periods beginning on o after 01 July 2019:

= IFRS 16 'Leases’

= Amendments to IFRS 09 "Finandal Insruments’

» [FRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’

= Amendments to [AS 19 'Employes Benefits' - Plan Amendment, Curtallment or Seftlement
= Annual Improvements to IFRSs: 2015 — 2017 Cycle

The standard, amendments and interpretation listed above do not have any impact on the amounts recegnized in prior periods and are not
expected to significantly affect the currant or future periods,

e) Standard and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant
to the Company

There are other standard and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting perlods beginning
on or after 01 July 2019 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company's finandal statements
and are therefore not detailed in these finandal statements.

) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the Company

Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatery for the Company’s accaunting periods beginning on or
after 01 July 2020 or |ater periods:

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform which amended IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures', IFRS 9 Financial Instruments' and 1AS 39
‘Finandal Instruments: Recognition and Measurement’, is applicable for annual finanda perinds beginning on or after 01 January 2020, The
G20 asked the Fnandal Stability Board (FSB) to undertake a fundamental review of major interest rate benchmarks. Following the review,
the FSB published report setting out its recommended reforms of some major Interest rate benchmarks such as Interbank Offer Rates
(1BORs). Public authorities in many jurisdictions have since taken steps to implement those recommendations. This has in turn led to
uncertainty about the long-term viability of some interest rate benchmarks. In these amendments, the term ‘interest rates benchmarks
reform’ refers to the market-wide reform of an interest rate benchmark induding its replacement with an alternative benchmark rate, such as
that rasuiting from the F5B's recommendations set out in its July 2014 report 'Refarming Major Interest Rate Benchmarks' (the reform). The
amendments made provided raliel from the potential impacts of the uncertainty caused by the reform. A company shall apply these
exceptions to all hedging relationships directly affected by interest rate benchmark reform. These amendments are not likely to affect the
financal statements of the Company.

Amendments to IFRS 16 'Leases’ {effective for annual periods beginning an or after 01 June 2020). Under pervious requirements of IFRS 16,
lessea assesses whether rent concessions are leased modifications, IF so, apply the specdfic guidance on accounting for lease modifications,
This generally involves remeasuring these lease liabilities vsing the revised lease payments and revised discount rates. In light of the effects
of the COVID-19 pandemic and the fact that many lessees are applying the standard for the first ime in their finandal statements, the IASE
has provided an optional practical expedient for lessees. Under the practical expedient, lessees are not required to assess whether eligible
rent concessions are [eased modifications, and instead are permitted to account for as if these were not lease modifications. Rent concessions
are eligible for the practical expedient if these occur a5 a direct conseguence of the COVID-19 pandemic and if following criteria are met:

- the change In lease payments results in revised consideration for the |ease that |s substantially same as, or less than, the considerations for
lhe lease immediately preceding the change; any reduction in lease payments affects anly payments eriginally due on or before 30 June
2021 and

- there is no substantive change to the other terms and conditions of the lease,
The above amendments are not likely to affect the finandal statements of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements' and 145 8 ‘Aooounting Palides, Changes in Acoounting Estimates and Erors'
{effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020). The amendmeants are intended to make the definiion of material in IAS
1 easier to understand and are not intended to alter the underlying concept of materiality in 1FRSs, In addition, the TASBE has also issued
guidance on how to make materiallty judgments when preparing thelr general purpose financial statements n accordance with 1FRSs. The
amendments are not likely te affect the finandal statements of the Company.
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Amendments o [AS 1 'Presentation of FAnzndial Statements' (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022). These
amendments have heen added to further clarify when a liability is dassified as current. These amendments also changes the aspect aof
classification of liability as non-current by requiring the assessment of the entity'’s right at the end of the reparting period to defer the
settlernent of liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply these amendments retrospectively in
accordance with IAS 8. The amendments are not likely to affect the Ainandal statements of the Company.

Amendments to IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilibes and Contingent Assets' (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after {1
January 2022). These amendments clarify what comprise the cost of fulfilling & contract. Cost of fulfilling a contract Is relevant when
determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fulfilied all its
obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of inital application).
Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to opening balance of retsined earnings or other component of equity, as appropriate, at
the date of initial application. The amendments are not likely to affect the finandial statements of the Company.

Amendments to LAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’ (effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 01 January 2022). These
amendments clarify that sales proceeds and cost of iteme praduced while bringing an item of property, plant and equipment te the lacation
and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management, are recognized in profit or loss in
accordance with applicable standards. The entity measures the cost of those Items applying the measurement requirements of [AS 2
‘Tnventories’. The standard also removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply these
amendments refrospedively, but only ta items of property, plant and equipment which are broudht to the location and condition necessary
for tham to be capable of operating in the manner intendad by management on or after the beginning of the garliest period presented in the
financial statements in which the entity first applies the amendments. The entity shall recognize the cumulative effect of initally applying the
amendments as an adjustrment to the apening balance of retained earnings (ar other component of equity, as appropriate) at the baginning
of that earliest period presented. The amendments are not likely to affect the finandal statements of the Company.

On 14 May 2020, TASE lssued Annual Improvements to IFRSs; 2018 - 2020 Cyde, Incorporating amendments to three IFRSs mare
specifically in IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’, and IFRS 16 'Leases', relevant to the Company. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 01 January 2022, The amendments have no significant impact on the Company's financial statements and have
therefore not been anabyzed in detail.

On 28 March 2018, the 1ASB has issued a revised Conceptual Framework. The new Framework: reintroduces the terms stewardship and
prudence; Introduces a new asset definition that focuses an rights and a new liability definition that is likely to be broader than the definiton
it replaces, but does not change the distinction between a llability and an equity instrument; removes from the assetand liability definitions
references to the expected flow of economic benefits-this lowers the hurdle for identifying the existence of an asset or liability and puts more
emphasis on refleding uncertainty in measurement; discusses historical cost and current value measures, and provides some guidance an
how the [AS8 would go about selecting a measurement basis for a particular asset or |lability; states that the primary measure of financial
performance is profit or foss, and that only in exceptional dreumstances will the TASBE use other comprehensive Income and only Ffor income
or expenses that arise from a change in the current value of an asset ar liability; and discusses uncertainty, de-recognition, unit of account,
the reporting entity and combined financial statements, The Framework Is not an IFRS and does not override any standard, so nothing will
change in the shart term. The revised Framework will be used in future standard-setting decisions, but no changes will be made to current
IFRSs, Preparers might also use the Framework to assist them in developing accounting polides where an issue is not addressed by an IFRS,
It is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2020 for preparers that develop an accounting policy based on the
Framewark.

Standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective and not considered
relevant to the Company

Thera are other standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting periods
beginning an or after 01 July 2020 but are considerad not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements and are therefore not detailed In these financial statements,

Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

All operating fixed assefs except freehold land are stabed at cost less accumulated depreciation and any identified impairment loss, except
those subject to revaluation whidh are stated at revalued amount less accumutated depreciation and any identified iImpairment loss. Capital
work-in-progress Is stated at cost less any recognized impairment loss. Frechold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified
impairment loss. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining to the construction / erection period of
qualifying assets and other directly attributable costs of bringing the asset to working condition.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of property, plant and equipment are recognized, net of deferred Income @x, in
other comprehiensive income and accumulated in revaluation surplus in sharehelders’ equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease
previously recognized in the stabement of profit or loss, the increase Is first recognized in the siatement of profit or loss. Decreases that
reverse previous increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus
attributable to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss. Each year, the difference between depreciation
based on the revalued carrying amount of the asset charged to the statement of profit or less and depreciation based on the asset's original
cost, net of deferred income tax, is redassified from surples on revaluation of property, plant and equipment to accumutated loss.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s earrying amount ar recognized as a separate asset, as appropeiate, anly when it is probable that
future economic benefits associsted with the jlem will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other
repalr and malntenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the perlod In which they are incurred.

Vaksations are performed frequenty encwgh to ensure that the: far vaiie of @ revabed asset does not differ matenaly from Es carmying amount.
Deprediation

Depredation on property, plant and equipment is charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance method so as to
write off the cast / depredable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lves at the rates given in Note 13. The Company charges the
depreciation on additions from the manth when the assat is available for use and on defetions up to the manth preceding the disposal when
the asset is de-recognized. The residual values and useful lives are reviewed by the management, at each financial year-end and adjusted if
impact on deprediation is significant.
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De-recognition

Anitem of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon dispoesal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal, Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset {mloulated as the difference between the net disposal procesds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-recognized.

Investment properties

Land and bulldings held to earn rental income are classified as irvestment properties. Investment properties are carried at fair value which is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, For any difference in the nature, location or condition of the spedfic asset. The
valuation of the properties is carried out with sufficient regularity,

Galn or loss arlsing from a change In the falr value of investment properties is included in the statement of profit or loss For the year [nwhich
it arises.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are subject to
depredation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying
amaunt may not be recoverable. An impaiment Ioss s recognized for the amount Tor which asset's carrying amaount exceeds its recoverable
amount, Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs to sell and value in use, For the purposes of assessing
Impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separataly identifiable cash flows (cash-penerating units). Non-
financial assets that suffered an Impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the iImpairment at each reparting date. Reversals of the
impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined, net of depreciation or amortization, iF impairment losses had not been recognized. An impairment |oss or reversal of impairment
loss Is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

Share capital

Crdinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value, Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares
are shown In equity as a deduction, net of tax, If any.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs are recognized as expense in the period In which these are incurred except to the extent of borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of a qualifying asset. Such bomowing costs are capitalized as part of the cost of that
asset,

Inventories
Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable valuz, Cost is determined as follows:
Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and [oose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are carried at nil
value, In transit stores, spare parts and loose toals are valued at invoice amount plus other charges paid thereon,

Stock-in-trade
Caost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:

(i) For aw materials: Weighted average cost.

(il) For work=in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including a portion of production overheads,
Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid therson. Waste stodk is valued at net realizable value,

et reslizable value signifies the esimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and estimated
osts necessary to make a sale

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current accounts and other short term highly Bquid Instruments that are
readily convertible into knawn amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of changes in valuss,

Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates an unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the minimum gualifying period of
service as defined under the scheme, The liabllites relating to defined benefit plan are detesmined through actuarial valuation using the
Projected Unit Credit Method, The method involves making assumptions about discount rates, future salary increases and mortality rates,
[Due to the leng term nature of the benefit, such estimates are subjed to certain uncertainties.

Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other comprehensive income,
Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events and it is probable that an
outflow of resources embadying economic benefits will be required to settde the obligations and a reliable estimate of the outflow can be
made. Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate.

Taxation
Current

Prowisian for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in acordance with the prevailing law for axation of income.
The charge for current tax is alculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit for the year, if enacted, The
charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax made in previous years arising from
assessments framed during the year for such years.

il
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Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences betwesn the carnving
amount of assets and liabilites in the finandal statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation of the taxable profit,
Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and defarred tax assets to the extent that it Is probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused tak losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse based on tax rates that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited In the statement of profit or |oss, except to the
extent that it relates fo items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognized in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

2.12 Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company’s sharsholders is recognized as a liability in the Company’s financial statements in the pericd in which it
is dedared and other appropriations are recognized in the period In which these are approved by the Board of Directors,

2.13 Financial Instruments
i) Recognition of financial instruments

The Company initially recognizes financial assets on the date when they are oniginated. Financial lisbilifes are initizlly recognized on the trade
date when the entity becomes a party to the mntractual provisians of the instrument,

i) Classification and measurement of financial instruments
a) Classification
The Company classifies its financial assets and financial liabilibes at amortized cost.
The classification depends on the Company's business madel for managing the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.
b} Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a finandal asset at its fair value plus transadion costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition of the financal asset. Financial assets with embedded derivatives are considered in thesr entirety when determining whether thelr
cash fows are soldy payments of principal and interest. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company's business
model for managing the asset and the cash Row characteristics of the asset. The Company dassifies its debt instruments at amortized cost.
Financial assets that are held for collecion of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal and
Interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financlal assats Is included In other income using the effective interest
rate method. Finandal liabilites are subseguently messured at amortized cost using the effective Interest method. Interest expense is
recognized In the statement of profit or loss, Any galn ar lass arising on de-racognition s recognized directly in profit or lose and presented
in other income [ {other expenses).

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Campany assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit [osses associated with its dabt instruments carried at amortized cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant Increase In credit risk.

For rade debts and other receivables, the Company applies the simplified approach permitted by IFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognized from initlal recognition of the receivables.

v} De-recognition
Financial assets
The Company de-recognizes a finandal asset when the confractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers the rights to
receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of the finandal asset are
transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and does not retein control over the

trarsfarred assel. Any interest in such de-recognized financal assets hat js created or retained by the Company (5 recognized as a separate
assat or liability.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a finandial liability {or a part of finandal liability) from its statement of financial position when the obligabion
specified in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired.

) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilives are offset and the net amount Is reported in the finandal statements only when thera is a legally
enforceable right to set off and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets and to settie the liabiliies
simul@neously,

214 Borrowings

Financing and borrowings are (nitially recognized at far value of the consideration received, net of transaction costs. They are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method,

215 Trade and other receivablas

Trade receivables are initially recognized at fair value and subseguently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less
any allowance for expected credit losses. Trade receivables generally do not indude amounts overdue by 365 days.
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The Company has applied the simplified approach to measure expected credit losses, which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance, Actual

credit koss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss.
Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.
2,16 Trade and other payables
Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are initially recognized at fair value, which is normaly the transaction cost.

2.17 Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Ttems inchuded in the finandal statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment inwhich
the Company operates (the functional currency), The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which Is the Company's functional
and presentation currency. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currendes are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevalling

at the reperting date, Transactions in foreign currendies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction,

Exchange gains and |osses are included in the statement of profit or loss,
2.18 Revenue from contracts with customers
i) Revenue recognition

Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is generally at the

time of delivery.

Interast

Interest income s recognized as intensst accres using the effective interest methed. This is a method of caloatating the amortized cost of a
financial asset and ailocating the Interest income owver the relevant period using the effective interest rate, which |s the rate that exactly

discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expacted life of the financial assat to the nat carrying amount of the financial asset,

Rental income

Revenue from rental |ncome is recognized when rent s acorued.

Other revenue

Cther revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.

i) Contract assets

A pontract asset is the right to consideration in exchange for goods or services transferred to the customer. The Company recognizes a
contract asset for the earned consideration that ks conditional If the Company performs by transferring goods or sarvices (o a customer

hefare the customer pays consideration or before payment is due.

iii)  Right of return assets

Right of returm assets represents the right to recover Inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of cestomers who may exercise
their rightto return the goods and daim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory was previously carried prior

to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impaimment.

iv) Contract liabilities

Contract liability |s the obligation of the Company ta transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received consideration from
the customer. IF a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is recognized when the payment is

made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its performance obligations under the contract.

2.19 Earnings [ {loss) per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) or Loss Per Share (LPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS / (LPS) is calculated by dividing
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary sharehalders of the Company by the welghted average number of ordinary shares outstanding

during the year.

2.20 Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disclosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will only be
canfirmed by the ocourrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company.

Contingent assets are not recognized until thelr reallzation becomes cartain,

2,21 Contingent liabilities

Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only be confirmed
by the ooourrence or non-ooccurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Company. Contingent
liahilities are not recognized, only dischosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is considered remaote, In the event that the
outflow of resources associated with a contingent liahility is assessed as probable, and if the size of the outflow can be reliably estimated, a

provision is recognized in the finanda statements,
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ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID UP SHARE CAPITAL

2020 2019 2020 2019
(NUMBER OF SHARES) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9060000 9060000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each fully paild in cash o0, 600 90,600
B0O0 000 600 000 Ordinary shares of Rupees 10 each issued as fully paid bonus
shares 6, 000 G,000
9 660 000 9 660 000 96,600 96,600

DIRECTORS' LOANS

These represent unsacured interest free loans to meet the liquidity requirements of the Company.
discretion of the Company.

Thess loans are repavable at the

PREMIUM ON ISSUE OF SHARES
This reserve can be utilized by the Campany only for the purpase specified in section 81 of the Companies Act, 2017,

SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND
INVESTMENT PROPERTIES - NET OF DEFERRED INCOME TAX

Property, plant and aquipment (Note 6,1) 256,181 218,845

Investment properties (Note 6.2) 61,357 72,086
317,538 290,031

Property; plant and equipment

Balance as at 01 July 218,845 203,362

Add:

Surplus arising on revaluation during the year - net of deferred income @x 32,934 14,107

Surplus refated to investment properties - net of deferred income tax 10,729 7,183
262,508 224,652

Transferred to sccumulated less in respect of incremental depredation charged

during the year - net of deferred income @x (6,327) (5,807)

Balance as at 30 June 256,181 218 B45

6.1.1 Freshold land, bulldings therson, plant and machinery, electric installations | appliances, generators and laboratory equipment of the

7.

B.1

Company were revalued by an independent valuer, Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company on 30 June 2020 on the basis of present prevailing
market values, Previously these assets were revalued by independent valuers on 30 September 2001, 01 July 2003, 10 April 2007, 28 June
20113, 30 June 2016 and 29 June 2019,

Investment properties

Balance as at 01 July 72,086 79,269

Surplus refated to property, plant and equipment - pet of deferred income tax (10,729) (7.183)

Balance as at 30 June 61,357 72,086

DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

This comprises the following:

Taxable temporary difference

Accelerated tax depreciation 180,837 177,896

Deductible temporary differences

Staff retirement grotuity (7,874) {S,lﬂﬂj;

Unused tax losses (1035,540) (73,124)|

Allowance for expected cedit losses {154) {2,053}

Minimum f&Ex - (28,154}
(113,568) (108,631)

67,269 69,265

STAFF RETIREMENT GRATUITY
Latest actuarial valuation of the staff retirement gratuity was conducted as on 30 June 2020, Results of actuarial valuation are as under:
The amount incduded in the statement of finandial position is as follows:

Prasent value of defined benefit oblication 27,152 18,274
Movement in present value of defined benefit obligation

Balance as at 01 July 18,274 12,144
Pravision for the year (Note 8,3) 13,382 9,806
Retirement bensfit paid (4,030) (3,296)
Rem easurements chargeable to other comprehensive iIncome (Note 8.4) {474) (380)
Balance as at 30 June 27,152 18,274

42
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2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
8.2 Recondliation of the movements in the net liability recognized in the
statement of financial position
Opening balance 18,274 12,144
Add: Provision for the year (Note 8.3) 13,382 9,806
Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income (Note 8.4) {474) (3800
31,182 21,570
Less; Paid during the year (4,030) (3,296)
27,152 18,274
8.3  Provision for the year
Current service cost 11,065 8,861
Interest cost 2,317 045
13,382 9,806
8.4 Remeasurements chargeable to other comprehensive income
Actuarial (gain) [ loss from changes in financial assumptions (72) 45
Experience adjustments {402) (425)
{474} (380)
2020 2019
85 Prindipal actuarial assumptions used
Discount rate for interest cost in the statement of profit or loss charge (per annun 14.25% 9.00%
Discount rate for year end obligation (per annum) 8.50% 14.25%
Expected rate of increase in salaries (% per annum) 7.50% 13.25%
Average duration of the benefit 5 5
Mortality rates SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
Withdrawal rate Age based Age based
Retirement assumption Age 60 Age 60

8.6 The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2021 is
Rupess 11.681 million.

8.7 Sensitivity analysis for actuarial assumptions:

Reasonably possible changes at the reporting date to one of the relevant actuarial assumptions, holding other
assumptions constant, would have resulted in present value of defined benefit obligation as stated below:

Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (1,338) (870)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 1,517 980
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand} 1,517 980
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) {1,362} (884)

8.8 Amounts for the current and previous four years:
r 2020 [ 2019 [ 2018 [ 2017 [ 2016

m—eesmmrerraanesee- RUPEES IN THOUSAND------=====-=c==c-x
Present value of defined benefit obligation 27,152 18,274 12,144 8,950 8,007
Remeasurements on defined benefit obligation (474) (380) 1,322 374

The sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In
practice, this is uniikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating
the sensitivity of the defined benefit plan to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value
of the defined benefit plan calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period)
has been applied as when calaulating the gratuity liability recognized within the siatement of finandal position.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to
previous year, except for certain changes as given in Note 8.5,
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8.9

a)

b)

i)

10.

10.1
10.2

10.2.1

11.

111

al

Risk associated with the scheme

Final salary risk

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the
benefit is calculated on the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the
benefit amount increases as salary increases.

Demographic risks

Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more
pronounced in schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of
the withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the beneficiary.

LONG TERM SECURITY DEPOSIT

This represents security deposit received from Masood Textile Mills Limited (MTM) against lease of investment
properties of the Company. This amount is being utilized by the Company in accordance with the written
agreement between MTM and the Company in terms of section 217 of the Companies Act, 2017,

2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors (Nate 10.1) 6,140 123,732
Accrued liabilities E5,717 45,635
Confract liabilities 169,111 2,438
Income tax deducted at source 390 677
Sales tax payable 63,458 32,714
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 10.2) = 3,239
356,816 208,435
Creditors include Rupees Mil (2019: Rupees 14.081 million) due to a related party.
Workers' profit participation fund
Balance as on 01 July 3,239 180
Interest for the year (Note 31) 180 11
Provision for the year - 3,239
3,419 3,430
Less: Payments during the year 3,419 191
Balanoe as on 30 June - 3,239

Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers' Partidpation) Act, 1968 on funds
utilized by the Company till the date of allocation to workers.

SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Running and cash finances (Note 11.1) 408,202 505,792

Others - unsecured

Dther related parties (Mote 11.2) 38,203 20,703
446,405 526,495

These finances are obtained from banking companies under mark-up arrangements and are secured against
hypothecation of stocks and further secured against the pledge of cotton, tencel and yam. These form part of
total credit facility of Rupees 847 million (2019: Rupees 877 million). The rates of mark-up range from 7.25%
to 15.60% (2019: 6.00% o 12.99%) per annum on the balance outstanding.

i1l
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al

11.2 These represent interest free loans obtained from directors of the Company to meet the Company's working

12.

capital requirements. These are repayable on demand.
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

a) Contingendes

i}  The Company is contingently liable for Rupees 3.000 million (2019: Rupees 3.000 million} to Director
Excise and Taxation on account of import duty,

ii) Guarantees of Rupees 43.090 million (2019: Rupees 32.273 million) are given by the banks of the
Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) against gas connections and Faisalabad Electric Supply
Company Limfted (FESCO) against electricity connection.

iy An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 07 June
2017 against the demand of Rupees 22,378 million (2019; Rupees 22.378 million) by the tax department
regarding disallowance of minimum tax adjustment for the tax year 2011, The Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue disposed the appeal. Then the department filed a reference before the Lahore High Court, Lahore
against this order. The related provision is not made in these financial statements in view of favorable cutcome
of the anneal.

iv) Subsequent to the financial year end, the Supreme Court of Pakistan has upheld the Gas Infrastructure
Development Cess (GIDC) Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra vires. In connection with this decision, the
Company filed a writ petition in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 16 September 2020 against the charge of GIDC
at the rate of captive power consumer instead of industrial consumer., Lahore High Court, Lahore suspended the
payment of Rupess 26.344 million related to this difference, subject to furnishing of post dated chegues, Post
dated cheque of first installment has been furnished by the Company. Kesping in view the opinion of the legal
counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these finandal statements as there are strong
grounds of favourable outcome of the petition.

v) An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 10 August 2017 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified
Liguefied Matural Gas (RLNG) by SNGPL amounting to Rupees 12.224 millien (2019: Rupees 12.224 million).
This appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas Regulatory
Autheority (OGRA ) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view
the opinion of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these financial statements
as there are strong grounds that the decision of the proposed public hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour
of the Company.

vi} An appeal has been filed by the Company before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore dated 16 April
2019, against the order of Addibonal Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) dated 14 November 2018, for
demand of Rupees 14.663 million (2019: Rupees 14.663 million) by the tax department regarding disallowance
of withholding taxes as adopted in income tax return for the tax year 2016. The related provision is not made in
these finandal statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

vii) The Company filed appeal before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue, Lahore as on 21 March 2019 against
the order of Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue for demand of Rupees 114.118 million (2019: Rupees
114.118 million) by the tax department by nullifying the proration of the income between FTR and NTR as
adopted by the Company for the tax year 2014. The related provision Is not made in these financial statements
in view of favarable outcome of the appeal,

viii) An appeal has been filed by the Regional Tax Office (RTO) Faisalabad before Appellate Tribunal Inland
Revenue, Lahaore in March 2019 because Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue amended the assessment for
the tax year 2007 and created a demand of Rupees 5.766 million (2019: Rupees 5.766 million) on the issue of
proration of expenses and prorated the specific expenses related to normal tax regime to final tax regime. The
related provision is not made in these finandal statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

ix)} An appeal has been filed by the Company before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals), Faisalabad for
the tax year 2017 involving a demand of Rupess 8.966 million (2019: Rupees 8.966 million) on 26 October
2018. The original order was issued by the Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue for non-deduction of
withholding tax on certain parties under various cdlauses of section 153 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001, The
related provision is not made in these finandal statements in view of favorable outcome of the appeal.

b) Commitments

i) There was no capital commitment as at 30 June 2020 (2019: Rupees Nil).

il) Letters of credit / contracts for other than capital expenditure were of Rupees 63.887 million (2019: Rupees
14.376 million).

| |
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13.1 Forced sale value of revalued property, plant and equipment was Rupees 677.215 million (2019 Rupees

13.2

13.3

134

14.

648.502 million}.

Depreciation charge for the year has been allocated as follows:

al

2020 2019
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Cost of sales (Mote 26) 36,396 36,320
Administrative expenses (Mote 27) 3,284 3,885
39,680 40,205
Particulars of immovable properties (i.e. land and buildings) are as follows:
Particulars Location Area Covered
area
Kanals Sq ft.
Manufacturing facility and
Head Office 35-Kilometers, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad 94,48 248 000

Had there been no revaluation, cost, accumulated depreciation and book value of the revalued assets

would have been as follows:

Cost

Accumulated
depreciation

Net book
value

-==---=- (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) -~~~

Freehold land 3,352 - 3,352
Buildings on freshold land:

Mills 63,219 39,689 23,530

Other 13,641 8,313 5,328
Plant and machinery 1,031,447 574,780 456,667
Electric installations | appliances 23,488 14,169 9,319
Generators 82,044 57,857 24,187
Laboratory equipment 11,533 7,135 4,398
2020 1,228,724 701,943 526,781
2019 1,211,247 667,985 543,262

2020 2019

INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

Balance as on 01 July

Transferred to property, plant and equipment

Fair value gain transferred to the statement of profit or loss on
remeasurement of investment properties at the year end

Fair wvalue gain transferred to the statement of profit or loss on
remeasurement of investment properties at the time of transfer to
property, plant and eguipment

Balance as on 30 June

47

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

115,554 120,381
(15,721) (8,923)
99,833 111,458

2,847 3,890
288 206
3,135 4,096
102,968 115,554

i1l
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14.1

14.2
14.3

15,

151

15.2

16.

17.

17.1
17.2
18.

18.1

18.2

al

i1l

During the year the Company transferred some of its freehold land and buildings thereon, given on lease,
from investment properties to property, plant and equipment using fair value model. Latest fair value of
the remaining investment properties has been determined on 30 June 2020 by Messrs Zafar Igbal and
Company, an independent valuer. No expenses directly related to investment properties were incurred
during the year.

Forced sales value of investment properties is Rupees 87.523 million (2019: Rupess 98.221 million).

Particulars of investment properties are as follows:

. Covered
Particulars Location Area i
Kanals Sq ft.
Land and buildings 35-Kilometers, Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad 31.47 89 384
2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
LONG TERM LOANS
Considered good:
Loans to employees 104 %
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 20) (84) -
20 =

These represent interest free loans given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure and are
secured against balance to the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity. These are recoverable in
equal monthly installments.

The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Finandal Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement' arising in respect of loans to employees is not considered material and
hence not recognized.

LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

Long term deposits 3,726 3,736
Long term prepayments 449 340
4,175 4,076
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 21) 316 242
3,859 3,834

STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores (Note 17.1) 15,787 13,577
Spare parts 40,656 28,957
Loose tools 174 168
56,617 42,702

These include stores in transit of Rupees 1.380 million (2019: Rupees 1.110 million}.
Stores and spare parts include tems which may resuk in fived capital expenditure but are not distinguishable.

STOCK IN TRADE

Raw materials (Note 18.1) 402,066 395,599
Work-in-process 22,665 19,574
Finished goads 15,496 4,682
Waste 668 3,378

440,895 423,233

Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupess Nil (2019; Rupees 37.667 million).

Stock in trade of Rupees 117.917 milion (2019: Rupees 3.378 millon) & being carmed at net realizable value,
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18.3

19,

19.1

19.2

21,

al

The aggregate amount of write-down of inventories to net realizable value recognized as an expense
during the year was Rupees 4.851 million (2019: Rupess Nil),

2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
TRADE DEBTS
Considered good:
Unsecured - others (Mote 19.1) 6,668 38,759
Less: Allowance for expected credit losses (Mote 19.2) 529 7,081
6,139 31,678

As at 30 June 2020, trade debts of Rupees 2.268 million {2019: Rupees 31.432 million) were past due but
not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade debts is as follows:

Upte 1 month 1,879 17,729
1 to & months 20 13,057
More than 6 months 369 646
2,268 31,432
Allowance for expected credit losses
Opening balance 7,081
Add:
Recognized as on 01 July 2018 - 7.081
Recognized during the year 529 -
7,610 7,081
Less:
Bad debts written off 1,681 -
Trade debts recovered during the year 5,400 -
/7,081 -
Closing balance 529 7,081
LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good:
Employees - interest free;
Against salary 943 859
Against expenses;
Executive 200 200
Other employees 223 128
423 328
1,366 1,187
Current portion of long term loans (Note 15) 84 .
Advances to suppliers / service providers 3,121 5,139
Letters of aedit 250 61
Income tax 67,723 76,549
72,544 82,936
SHORT TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Considered good:
Deposits 1,861 1,313
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments {Note 16) 316 242

2,177 1,555

i1l
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22,

23.

24,

25,

26.

OTHER RECEIVABLES

Considered good:

Export rebate and claims
Sales tax and special excise duty refundable
Miscellansous

SHORT TERM INVESTMENT

2020

al

i1l

2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

. 1,161
67,441 47,948

2,186 3,676
69,627 52,785

This represents term deposit receipt made with National Bank of Pakistan having maturity period of 6

months. Rate of profit is 5.75 percent (2019: 7.10 percent) per annum.

CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:

On current accounts

Cash in hand

REVENUE

Sales
Waste

Less: Sales tax

COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 26.1)

Cost of raw materials sold

Loading, unloading and weighment charges
Salaries, wages and other benefits

Staff retirement benefit

Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed
Packing materials consumed

Repair and maintenance

Fuel and power

Insurance

Other factory overheads

Deprediation (Note 13.2)

Work-in-procass
Opening stock
Closing stock

Cost of goods manufactured
Finished goods

Opening stock
Closing stock

35,121 49,319
368 733
35,489 50,052
1,483,191 1,819,285
80,840 81,384
1,564,031 1,900,669
248,854 15,359
1,315,177 1,885,310
810,512 1,180,684
= 10,658
1,711 3,300
136,822 165,942
12,170 7,924
52,426 44,928
18,941 25,609
2,415 2,057
242,108 262,209
2,113 2,487
979 610
36,396 36,320
1,316,593 1,742,737
19,574 14,542
(22,665) (19,574)
(3,001) (5,032)
1,313,502 1,737,705
8,060 17,435
(16,164) (8,060)
(8,104) 9,375
1,305,398 1,747,080

50
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26.1

27.

28.

28.1

29,

Raw materials consumed

Opening stock
Add: Purchased during the year

Less: Closing stock

DISTRIBUTION COST

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
Outward freight and handling
Commission to selling agents

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits
Staff retirement benefit
Rent, rates and taxes
Insurance

Travelling and conveyance
Vehides' running
Entertainment

Auditor's remuneration (Note 28.1)
Advertisement

Postage and telephone
Utilities

Printing and stationery
Repair and maintenance
Fee and subscription

Legal and professional
Miscellaneous
Depreciation (Note 13.2)

Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee
Half yearly review
Other certification

OTHER EXPENSES

Workers' profit participation fund
Other receivables written off

OTHER INCOME

Income from financial assets
Profit on investment

Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses - net

Income from non-financial assets
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment

Rental income

Gain on remeasurement of investment properties (Mote 14)

al

il

2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
395,599 157,677
816,979 1,418,606
1,212,578 1,576,283
402,066 395,599
810,512 1,180,684
521 567
39 63
488 485
988 996
2,036 2,111
15,598 15,825
1,173 1,819
115 450
1,798 1,498
2,160 2,451
4,244 5,286
1,110 1,686
850 725
a8 154
1,242 1,275
3,492 2,871
226 306
459 1,099
798 1,245
736 755
1,566 1,639
3,284 3,885
38,949 42,969
700 600
100 75
50 50
850 725
- 3,239
1,161 -
1,161 3,239
316 389
4,871 -
5,187 389
118 49
13,921 13,796
3,135 4,096
17,174 17,941
22,361 18,330

1 |
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31. FINANCE COST

Mark-up on short term borrowings
Bank charges and commission

Interest on workers' profit participation fund (Note 10,2)

32, TAXATION
Charge for the year:
Current (Note 32.1)
Prior year adjustment
Deferred
32.1

2020

al

il

2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

61,009 45,256
1,248 1,447
180 11
62,437 46,714
19,727 22,636
< (52)
(11,843) 19,923
7,884 42,507

Provision for current taxation represents minimum tax on local sales under section 113 of the Income Tax

Ordinance, 2001. The Company has unused tax losses of Rupees 363.930 million including unabsorbed
depreciation as at 30 June 2020 (2019: Rupees 252.150 million). Recondliation of tax expense and product
of accounting profit multiplied by the applicable tax rate is not required in view of unused tax losses of the

Company.

33. (LOSS)/ EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

There is no dilutive effect on the basic (loss) / earnings per share which is based on:

(Loss) / profit for the year after taxation
Weighted average number of ordinary shares

(Loss) [ earnings per share

CASH GENERATED FROM / (USED IN) OPERATIONS

(Loss) / profit before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:

Depreciation

Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment
Provision for staff retirement gratuity

Gain on remeasurement of investment properties
Profit on investments

Other receivables written off

Finance cost

Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses-net
Working capital changes (Note 34.1)

52

(Rupees in thousand)

(Mumbers)

(Rupees)

2020 2019
(80,327) 19,020
9 660 000 9 660 000
(8.32) 1.97
2020 2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
(72,443) 61,527
39,680 40,205

(118) (49)

13,382 9,806
(3,135) (4,096)

(316) (389)

1,161 5

62,437 46,714
(4,871) =
129,981  (162,920)
165,758 (9,202)
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341

35.

351

35.2

35.3

al

il

2020 2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Working capital changes
(Increase) / decrease in current assets
Stores, spare parts and loose tools (13,915) (156)
Stock in trade (17,662) (233,579)
Trade debts 30,410 29,883
Loans and advances 1,566 3,165
Short term deposits and prepayments (622) (16)
Other receivables (18,177) 3,951

(18,401)  (196,752)

Increase in trade and other payables 148,381 33,832

129,981 (162,920)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities:

2020 2019
Short term Unclaimed Short term  Unclaimed
borrowings dividend Total borrowings  dividend Total
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

As at 01 July 526,495 742 527,237 388,244 746 388,990
Borrowings (repaid) / obtained - ne (80,090) = (80,090) 138,251 * 138,251
Dividend declared - 3,864 3,864 - - -
Dividend paid . (2,745)  (2,745) " (4) (4)
As at 30 June 446,405 1,861 448,266 526,495 742 527,237

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged in these financial statements for remuneration including all benefits to Chief Executive
Officer, Directors and Executive of the Company is as follows:

Executive
2020 | 2019

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Managerial remuneration 1,517 1,400
Allowances

House rent 755 696

Utilities 3 4

2,275 2,100

Number of persons 1 1

Chief Executive Officer and some of the Directors and Executive of the Company are provided with free Company
maintained vehicles.

Chief Executive Officer, Directors and Executive are entitled to reimbursement of travelling expenses, electricity, gas and
water bills,

Mo remuneration was paid to any director and Chief Executive Officer of the Company.
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36.

36.1

3a7.

39,

39.1

al

il

TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise associated undertaking, other related parties and key management personnel. The Company in the
normal course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than
those which have besn spedifically disclosed elsewhere in these finandal statements is as follows:

Particulars Basis of relationship Mature of transaction 2020 2019
{(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Associated undertaking

Blue Moon Filling Station (Mote 36.1) Former director of the  Fuel purchased 2137 2,359
Company is partner of
the undertaking

Other related parties

Directors and their spouses Borrowings obtained [ (repaid) - n 17,500 1,500
Dividend paid 2,011 o

Blue Moon Filling Station ceased to be a related party since 01 June 2020 due to resignation of a direckor of the Company.

Detal of compensation to key manapement personnel compricing of Chief Executive Officer, Drector and Executive & discicsed in Note 35,

2020 2019
{NUMBER OF PERSONS)

NUMEBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of employees as at 30 June 497 582
Average number of employess during the year 511 663
PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION

2020 2019
100% plant capadty converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for 1 098 shifts
{2019: 1 095 shifts) (Kgs.) 10025392 5993 000
Actual production converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts per day for B85 shifts (2019: 1
080 shifts) (Kgs.) 5708 864 B 740 777

REASON FOR LOW PRODUCTION
Under utilization of available capacity is mainly due to COVID-19 lockdown starting from 24 March 2020 to 31 May 2020.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Financial risk factors

The Company’s activities expaose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (Induding currency risk, other price risk and Interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company’s averall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictabllity of finandal
markets and s=eks o minimize potential adverse effects on the Company’s financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by the Company’s finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The Board
provides principles for overall risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk,
interest rate risk, credit risk, liguidity risk, Investment of excess llquidity and use of non-derivative finandal instruments.

The Company’s overall risk management procedures, to minimize the potential adverse effects of finandal markets on the Company's
performance are as follows:

{a) Market risk

(i) Currency risk

Currency risk Is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commerdial transactions or receivables and payables that exist due to
transactions In foreign currencies, The Company has no receivable / payable balance in foreign currency as at 30 June 2020 (201%:
Nil).

(ii) Other price risk

Other price risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fiuctuate because of changes
in market prices (other than those arising from Interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual financial instrument or [ts |ssusr, or factors affecting all similar finandial instruments traded in the market.
The Company is not exposed 10 any markst price risk.
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(iii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from short term borrowings and short term investment.
Financial instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Financial
instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date the interest rate profile of the Company's interest bearing financial instruments
was as follows:

2020 2019
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Financial assets
Short term investment 5,500 5,500

Floating rate instruments

Financial liabilities
Short term borrowings 408,202 505,792

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reparting date would not affect profit or loss of
the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held
constant, (loss) / profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 4.082 million higher / lower
(2019: Rupees 4,805 million lower / higher) mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense on
floating rate borrowings. This analysis is prepared assuming the amount of financial instruments
outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the whaole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss for the
other party by failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of financial assets represents the
maximum credit exposure.

Credit risk of the Company arises from deposits with banks, trade receivables, other deposits and
receivables along with loans and advances. The management assesses the credit quality of the
customers taking into account their financial position, past experience and other factors. The utilization
of credit limits is regularly monitored. For banks, only independently rated parties with a strong credit
rating are accepted.

The Company monitors the credit quality of its finandal assets with reference to historical performance
of such assets and available external credit ratings, if any. The maximum exposure to credit risk at the
reporting date was as follows:

Investment 5,500 5,500
Loans and advances 1,047 859
Deposits 5,587 5,049
Trade debts 6,139 31,678
Other receivables 2,186 3,676
Bank balances 35,121 49,319

55,580 96,081
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The credit risk on liguid funds is limited because the counterparties are banks with reasonably
high credit ratings. The Company believes that it is not exposed to major concentration of
credit risk as its exposure is spread over a large number of counterparties.

The credit guality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by
reference to external credit ratings (if available) or to historical information about counterparty

default rate.
Rating 2020 2019
Short Long
ot | tarm Agency RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Banks

Conventional Accounts / Term Deposit Receipt

Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+  PACRA 5 10
Habib Bank Limited A-1+  AAA VIS 7,435 8,715
National Bank of Pakistan A-1+  AAA VIS 5,500 5,500
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 20 20
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA  PACRA 89 89
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA-  PACRA 1 1
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AA+  PACRA 4
Sindh Bank Limited A-1 A+ VIS 10 9
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA  PACRA 1,902 2

14,966 14,350

Shariah Compliant Accounts

Meezan Bank Limited A-1+  AA+ VIS 25,013 39,956
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 634 505
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+  PACRA 1 1
Habib Bank Limited A-1+  AAA VIS 7 7
25,655 40,469
40,621 54,819

The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade
debts is disclosed in Note 19,

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after
giving due consideration to their strong financial standing, the management does not expect
non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Company. Accordingly,
the credit risk is minimal.
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(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in mesting obligations associated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facllities. At 30 June 2020, the Company had Rupees 438.798 million (2019: Rupees
371.208 million) available borrowing limits from finandal institutions and Rupees 35489 milllon (2019: Rupees
50.052 million) cash and bank balances. The management believes the liquidity risk to be low. Following are the
contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the table are

undiscounted cash flows:

Carrying Contractual 6 months
amount cash flows or less

More than

1-2years years

= (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2020:

Mon-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 123,857 123,857 123,857 - -
Unclaimed dividend 1,861 1,861 1,861 - -
Accrued mark-up 11,977 11,977 11,977 - -
Short term borrowings 446,405 464,284 464,284 - -

584,100 601,979 601,979 - -

Contractual maturities of financial liabilities as at 30 June 2019:

MNon-derivative financial liabilities:

Trade and other payables 169,367 169,367 169,367 = =
Unclaimed dividend 742 742 742 - B
Accrued mark-up 15,083 15,083 15,083 - -
Shaort term borrowings 526,495 564,354 564,354 - -

711,687 749 546 743,546 = -

The confractual cash flows relating to the above financial liabilities have been determined on the basis of interest
rates [ mark-up rates effective as at 30 June. The rates of interest [ mark up have been disdosed in Note 11 to

these financial statements,

39.2 Financial instruments by categories

Financial assets as per statement of financial position
Investments

Loans and advances

Deposits

Trade debts

Other receivables

Cash and bank balances

Financial liabilities as per statement of financial position
Accrued mark-up

Undaimed dividend

Short term borrowings

Trade and other payables

At amortized cost

2020 2019
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND]
5,500 5,500
1,047 859
5,587 5,049
6,139 31,678
2,186 3,676
35,489 50,052
55,048 96,814

11,977 15,083

1,861 742
446,405 526,495
123,857 169,367

584,100 711,687

al

il
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39.3 Offsetting financial assets and financial liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no
enforceable master netting arrangements and similar agreements.

39.4 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company's ability to continue
as a going concern in order to provide returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders
and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to
shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry
and the requirements of the lenders, the Company monitors the capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings
represent short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in Note 11. Equity
represents 'total eguity' as shown in the statement of financial position. Total capital employed
includes 'total equity’ plus 'borrowings’ as shown below:

2020 2019
Borrowings Rupees in thousand 446,405 526,495
Total equity Rupees in thousand 722,685 773,605
Total capital employed Rupees in thousand 1,169,090 1,300,100
Gearing ratio Percentage 38.18 40.50

The decrease in the gearing ratio resulted primarily due to decrease in barrowings.

40. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair value hierarchy

Certain finandal assets and financial liabilities are not measured at fair value if the carrying amounts
are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to the short-term nature, carrying amounts of
certain financial assets and financial liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value, For
the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not significantly different to their
carrying amounts. Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the financial
instruments that are recognized and measured at fair value in these financial statements. To provide
an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has
classified its financial instruments into following three levels. However as at the reporting date, the
Company has no such type of financial instruments which are required to be grouped into these
levels, These levels are explained as under:

Level 1: The fair value measurements of instruments using quoted prices in active markets at the
end of reporting period are included in level 1.

Level 2: The fair value of finandial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example,
over-the-counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of
observable market data and rely as litte as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant
inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

Level 3: Fair value measurements of instruments using inputs for the asset or liability which are not
based on observable market data are included in level 3.

il



AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

41,
(i)

(i)

al

il

RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
Fair value hierarchy

The judgements and estimates made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that
are recognized and measured at fair value in the finandal statements. To provide an indication about
the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has dassified its non-
financial assets into the following three levels:

[Level1| Level2 | level3 | Total
------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND=-=-==========

At 30 June 2020

Freehold land - 103,929 - 103,925
Buildings on freehold land = 170,892 c 170,892
Plant and machinery - 502,698 - 502,698
Electric installations / appliances s 15,500 = 15,500
Generators = 45,000 = 45,000
Laboratory equipment = 8,499 = 8,499
Investment properties - 102,968 = 102,968
Total non-financial assets - 949 486 - 949 486
At 30 June 2019

Freehold land = 91,601 # 91,601
Buildings on freehold land E 162,630 = 162,630
Plant and machinery = 488,102 - 488,102
Electric installations / appliances - 15,500 - 15,500
Generators - 46,000 - 46,000
Laboratory equipment = 7,999 5 7,999
Investment properties = 115,554 = 115,554
Total non-financial assets - 927,386 - 927,386

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as
at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfer between level 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year.
Further, there was no fransfer in and out of level 3 measurements.

Valuation techniques used to determine level 2 fair values

The Company obtains independent valuations for its investment properties and for its freehold land,
buildings thereon, plant and machinery, electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory
equipment (classified as property, plant and equipment) on yearly basis. The management updates
the assessment of the fair value of each property taking into account the most recent independent
valuations. The management determines property's value within a range of reasonable fair value
estimates, The best evidence of fair value of freehold land is current prices in an active market for
similar lands. The best evidence of fair value of buildings is to calculate fair depreciated market value
by applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the new construction / replacement value
of the same buildings. The best evidence of fair value of plant and machinery, electric installations /
appliances, generators and laboratory equipment is to calculate fair depreciated market value by
applying an appropriate annual rate of depreciation on the value of new plant and machinery,
electric installations / appliances, generators and |laboratory equipment of the same specifications.

Valuation processes

The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuers to determine the fair value of the
Company's investment properties and for freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and machinery,
electric installations / appliances, generators and laboratory equipment at the end of every financial
year, The fair value of the investment properties, freehold land, buildings thereon, plant and
machinery, electric installations [ appliances, generators and laboratory equipment has been
performed by Messrs Zafar Igbal and Company as at 30 June 2020,
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42. DISCLOSURES BY COMPANY LISTED ON ISLAMIC INDEX
. 2020 | 2019

i Note [ RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Revenue earned from shariah compliant business 25 1,315,177 1,885,310
Shariah compliant bank deposits and bank balances
Bank balances 39.1(b) 25,655 40,469
Profits earned or interest paid on any conventional loan / advance
Mark-up on short term borrowings 3 61,009 43,852
Profit on investrment 30 316 389
Mark-up paid on Islamic mode of financing - 1,404
Loans / advances obtained as per Islamic mode
Contract liabilities 10 169,111 2,438
Short term borrowings 11 38,203 26,619
There is no profit earned from shariah compliant bank balances as all the bank balances are in current accounts.
Moreover there is no dividend on any investment and no exchange gain earned. The relationship with shariah
compliant banks is related to bank accounts as given in Note 39.1 (b).

43, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These financial statements were authorized for issue on October 05, 2020 by the Board of Directars of the Company.

44. CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Comparative figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary, for the purpose of comparison. However, no
significant re-arrangements have been made except for sales tax payable of Rupees 32.714 million which was
inadvertently netted off with "sales tax receivable”, now correctly shown in "trade and other payables”.

45. GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless otherwise stated.

AlIZAD AMER ANNS AMER
Chief Executive Officer Director Chief Financial Officer
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FORM 34
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017
(Section 227(2)(f)
PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
1.1 Name of the Company| AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED
2.1. Pattemn of holding of the shares held by the shareholders as at | 30-06-2020
——--Shareholdings——

2.2 No. of Shareholders From To Total Shares Held
617 1 100 18,610
246 101 500 57,312

45 501 1,000 40,025
68 1,001 5,000 180,167
15 5,001 10,000 119,961
7 10,001 15,000 93,848
g 15,001 20,000 122,119
4 20,001 25,000 95,000
1 25,001 30,000 30,000
1 35,001 40,000 35,500
1 40,001 45,000 40,587
1 65,001 70,000 66,500
1 70,001 75,000 72,500
1 75,001 80,000 78,225
2 85,001 90,000 179,000
1 95,001 100,000 100,000
1 260,001 265,000 264,125

1 430,001 435,000 431,446

1 740,001 745,000 742,697
1 885,001 890,000 890,000
1 1,180,001 1,185,000 1,184,193
1 1,475,001 1,480,000 1,475,611
1 1,640,001 1,645,000 1,640,170
1 1,700,001 1,705,000 1,702,404
1,026 9,660,000
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2.3 Categories of Shareholders Shares Held

2.3.1 Directors, Chief Executive Officer, 7,901,531
and their spouse and minor children

2.3.2 Associated Companies, 0
undertakings and related
parties. (Parent Company)

2.3.3 NIT and ICP 448,846

2.3.4 Banks Development 559
Financial Institutions, Non
Banking Financial Institutions.

2.3.5 Insurance Companies 0
2.3.6 Modarabas and Mutual 6,600
Funds
2.3.7 Shareholders holding 10% 7,007,075
or more

2.3.8 General Public

a. Local 1,208,523
b. Foreign 172
2.3.9 Others (to be specified)
1- Joint Stock Companies 40,233
2- Investment Companies 200
3- Pension Funds 40,587
4- Others 12,749

i1l

Percentage

81.7964

0.0000

4 6464

0.0058

0.0000

0.0683

72.5370

12.5106
0.0018

0.4165
0.0021
0.4202
0.1320

Cray. |
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Categories of Shareholding required under Code of Corporate Governance (CCG)
As on June 30, 2020

No. of Shares
e t
Sr. No. Name Held Percentage

Associated Companies, Undertakings and Related Parties (Name Wise Detail): - -

Mutual Funds (Name Wise Detail)
| GOLDEN ARROW SELECTED STOCKS FUND LIMITED (CD(C) 6,500 0.0673

Directors and their Spouse and Minor Children (Name Wise Detail):

I MR. AlZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
2 MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19,9471
3 MR. ANNS AMER 1,475,611 15.2755
4 KHAWAJA AMER KHURSHID 1864404 19,3002
5 MRS. YUSRA AMER 890,000 9.2133
6 MR. ABDUL RAUF 3,456 0.0358
7 SYED KHALID ALI 1,000 0.0104
Executives: - -

Public Sector Companies & Corporations: - .

Banks, Development Finance Institutions, Non Banking Finance 41,246 0.4270
Companies, Insurance Companies, Takaful, Modarabas and Pension Funds:

Shareholders holding five percent or more voting intrest in the listed company (Name Wise Detail)

S. No. Name Holding % AGE
| MRS. NAZIMA AMER 1,926,890 19.9471
2 KHAWAIJA AMER KHURSHID 1,864,404 19.3002
3 MR. AIZAD AMER 1,740,170 18.0142
4 ME. ANNS AMER 1.475,611 15.2755
3 MISS YUSRA AMER 890,000 02133

il
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AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED

PROXY FORM

I/We of

being member(s) of
AN TEXTILE MILLS LIMITED holding ordinary shares as per Registered Folio
No./CDC A/c No. (for members who have shares in CDS)
hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss of (full
address) or failing him/her
Mr_/Mrs_/Miss of (full
address) (being

member of the Company) as my/our Proxy to attend, act and vote for me/us and on my/our
behalf at the 39" Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 28, 2020
at 10:00 a.m. at its Registered Office 35 K.M. Sheikhupura Road, Faisalabad and/or any
adjournment thereof.

As witness my/our hand seal this day of 2020
Signed by in the
presence of

Signatures on
Rs.5/-
Revenue Stamps

(Signature must agree with the specimen
signatures registered with the Company)
Notes:

1. This proxy form duly completed and signed, must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company or its Share Registrar M/S Corplink (Pvt.) Limited, Wings Arcade, 01-K
Commercial, Model Town, Lahore not less than 48 hours before the time of holding the
meeting.

2. No person shall act as proxy unless he/she himself/herself is a member of the
Company, except that a Corporation may appoint a person who is not a member.

3. If a member appoints more than one proxy and more than one instruments of proxy are
deposited by a member with the Company, all such instruments of proxy shall be
rendered invalid.

4. Any individual Beneficial Owner of the Central Depository Company, entitled to vote at
this meeting must bring his / her National Identity Card with him/her to prove his/her
identity, and in case of proxy, must enclose an attested copy of his / her National
Identity Card. Representatives of Corporate members should bring the usual
documents required for such purpose.
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